
Licensing Sub-
Committee
28 June 2019

Time and venue:

10.00 am in the Ditchling & Telscombe Rooms - Southover House, Lewes

Membership:

Councillors; Sam Adeniji, Isabelle Linington, Sean MacLeod and Roy Clay (reserve)

Quorum: 3
Published: Thursday, 20 June 2019

Agenda
1 Election of chair of the sub-committee for this meeting  

2 Apologies for absence/declaration of substitute members  

3 Declarations of interest  

Disclosure by councillors of personal interests in matters on the agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the councillor regards the interest as 
prejudicial under the terms of the Code of Conduct.

4 Premises Licence hearing - Lewes Golf Club  (Pages 3 - 140)

Information for the public
Accessibility:  Please note that the venue for this meeting is wheelchair accessible and 
has an induction loop to help people who are hearing impaired. This agenda and 
accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in PDF format which means 
you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe Acrobat Reader.

Filming/Recording: This meeting may be filmed, recorded or broadcast by any 
person or organisation. Anyone wishing to film or record must notify the Chair prior to 
the start of the meeting. Members of the public attending the meeting are deemed to 
have consented to be filmed or recorded, as liability for this is not within the Council’s 
control.

Public participation: Please contact Democratic Services (see end of agenda) for the 
relevant deadlines for registering to speak on a matter which is listed on the agenda if 
applicable.

Public Document Pack



Information for councillors
Disclosure of interests:  Members should declare their interest in a matter at the 
beginning of the meeting. 

In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered 
(nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must be 
reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently notified in writing to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days.

If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when 
the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation).

Councillor right of address: A member of the Council may ask the Leader, a Cabinet 
Member or the Chair of a committee or sub-committee any question without notice 
upon an item of the report of the Cabinet or a committee or subcommittee when that 
item is being received or under consideration by the Council.

A member of the Council may ask the Chair of a committee or sub-committee a 
question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which 
affect the District and which falls within the terms of reference of that committee or 
subcommittee.

A member must give notice of the question to the Head of Democratic Services in 
writing or by electronic mail no later than close of business on the fourth working day 
before the meeting at which the question is to be asked.

Democratic Services
For any further queries regarding this agenda or notification of apologies please 
contact Democratic Services.

Email: committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk  

Telephone: 01273 471600  

Website: http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/ 

 
modern.gov app available
View upcoming public committee documents on your iPad or Android Device with the free 
modern.gov app.

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en


Report to:  Licensing Sub Committee

Date: 28 June 2019

Title: Application for a Premises Licence.  Lewes Golf Club, 
Chapel Hill, Lewes  

Report of: Director of Service Delivery

Ward(s): Lewes Bridge

Purpose of report: To consider representations made against the Premises 
Licence application submitted under the Licensing Act 2003 
and make a decision on the application

Officer 
recommendation(s):

To consider representations made against the Premises 
Licence application submitted under the Licensing Act 2003 
and make a decision on the application

Reasons for 
recommendations:

Relevant representations made within consultation period

Contact Officer(s): Name:   Susan Lindsey
Post title:   Specialist Advisor (Licensing)
E-mail:   sue.lindsey@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
Telephone number:   01273 085210

1. Introduction

1.1 Lewes District Council received a Premises Licence application submitted 
under the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises : Lewes Golf Club Appendix 1

1.2 The applicant is ‘Lewes Golf Club Limited’

1.3 The licensable activities applied for are:

1.4 Sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises from 9am to 11pm 
Monday to Sunday.

1.5 Lewes Golf Club have submitted the following steps to promote the four 
licensing objectives.

1.5.1 General 

1.5.2 All staff will be trained in licensing law and the responsible sale of alcohol prior 
to commencement of selling alcohol; a staff training manual will be kept and 
maintained at the premises and made available for inspection by police 
licensing officers and local authority officers on request.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



1.5.3 Further verbal reinforcement/refresher training covering the above will be 
carried out thereafter at intervals not to exceed 6 months, with the date and 
time of the verbal reinforcement/refresher training documented.

1.5.4 All such training undertaken by staff members shall be fully documented and 
recorded and signed by both the employee and the DPS. 

1.5.5 A list of staff members who are authorised to sell alcohol on the premises shall 
be kept.  This shall be endorsed by the DPS with the date such authorisation 
commences. 

1.5.6 The prevention of crime and disorder

1.5.7 An incident log will be maintained by the premises showing a detailed note of 
incidents that occur in the premises. The log will be inspected and signed off by 
the DPS (or a person with delegated authority) at least intervals of no more 
than four (4) weeks.

1.5.8 The log book should be kept on the premises and be available for inspection at 
all times the premises are open by authorised officers of the Licensing Authority 
or the police. 

1.5.9 Feedback shall be given to staff to ensure these are used on each occasion 
that an incident occurs at the premises.

1.5.10 CCTV:  Digital CCTV and appropriate recording equipment to be installed in 
accordance with Home Office Guidelines relating to UK Police Requirements 
for digital CCTV system, (PSDB publication 09/05) operated and maintained 
throughout the premises internally and externally to cover all public areas, 
including the entrance to the premises.  The system shall be on and recording 
at all times the premises licence is in operation.The CCTV cameras and 
recording equipment must be of sufficient quality to work in all lighting levels 
inside the premises at all times. CCTV footage will be stored for a minimum of 
28 days. The management will give full and immediate cooperation and 
technical assistance to the Police and Local Authority in the event that CCTV 
footage is required for the prevention and detection of suspected or alleged 
crime. The CCTV images will record and display dates and times, and these 
will be checked regularly to ensure their accuracy. Subject to Data Protection 
guidance and legislation, the management of the premises will ensure that key 
staff are fully trained in the operation of the CCTV, and will be able to download 
selected footage onto a disk (or similar) for the Police and Local Authority 
without difficulty or delay and without charge. Any breakdown or system failure 
will be notified to the Police and Local Authority immediately and remedied as 
soon as practicable.

1.5.11 Public Safety

1.5.12 Regular risk assessments are undertaken and records retained.

Page 4



1.5.13 The prevention of public nuisance

1.5.14 Due to the remote position of this premises, no public nuisance issues are 
anticipated.  However, should any arise, these will be dealt with in co-operation 
with the Local Authority.

1.5.15 The Protection of Children from Harm

1.5.16 The premises will operate an age verification policy set at a minimum of 25 
years (e.g. "Challenge 25") whereby any person attempting to buy alcohol who 
appears to be under the specified age e.g. 25 will be asked for photographic ID 
to prove their age. The recommended forms of ID that will be accepted are 
passports, official Photographic Identity Cards issued by EU states bearing a 
hologram or ultraviolet feature, driving licences with a photograph, photographic 
military ID or proof of age cards bearing the 'PASS' mark hologram. The list of 
recommended forms of ID may be amended or revised with the prior written 
agreement of Sussex Police, the Licensing Authority and Trading Standards 
without the need to amend the licence or conditions attaching to it.

1.5.17 Signage advertising the age verification or 'Challenge 25' policy will be 
displayed in prominent locations in the premises.

1.5.18 A refusals register will be kept and maintained at the premises and made 
available for inspection by Police, Police Licensing Officers and Local Authority 
Officers on request.

1.6 If granted, the above (1.5.1 to 1.5.18) will be included on the Premises Licence 
as conditions, along with the mandatory conditions, and any conditions the Sub 
Committee may impose following relevant representations.

1.7 The application has been advertised in line with the Licensing Act 2003 
(Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005.

2. Background information

2.1 Lewes Golf Club was founded in 1896 with the timbered clubhouse being re-
built in 1996 (the Club’s Centenary year).  The main greens and tees are 
professionally maintained to guarantee play all year round.  The course is 6,253 
yards, with members and visitors having access to a five bay driving range and 
practice greens.

2.2 Lewes Golf Club is accessed via Chapel Hill (a narrow single track road).   

2.3 Lewes Golf Club currently have a ‘Club Premises Certificate’ issued under the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Appendix 2).  

2.4 The Club Certificate issued by Lewes Magistrates Court under the Licensing 
Act 1964 was ‘converted’ to a Club Premises Certificate issued under the new 
‘Licensing Act 2003’ in 2005

Page 5



2.5 The current Club Premises Certificate allows: 

2.6 the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to, or to the order of, a member 
of the club for consumption on or off the premises, and

2.7 the sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a guest of a member of 
the club for consumption on the premises where the sale takes place.  

2.8 The times authorised for the carrying out of the above qualifying club activities 
are:

a. On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve, 
10am to 11pm

b. On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Years Eve, 12 noon to 
10.30pmOn Good Friday 12 noon to 10.30pm

c. On New Years Eve, except on a Sunday 10am to 11pm
d. On Christmas day the hours shall:
e. not exceed six and a half hours
f. not begin earlier than noon
g. not end later than 10.30pm
h. provide for a break of at least 2 hours, including 3pm to 5pm
i. not extend for more than three and a half hours after 5pm
j. On New Years Eve from the end of permitted hours to the start of permitted 

hours on the following day.

2.10 Lewes District Council historic records show the renewal of the Lewes 
Magistrates Court Club Registration Certificate in February 2003 : it is not 
known how long prior to this date the Club Certificate was issued.

2.11 Lewes District Council records show no complaints having been made against 
the Lewes Golf Club.

2.12 An aerial view of Lewes Golf Club showing its proximity to residential premises 
is at Appendix 9

2.13 Should the Licensing Sub Committee’s decision be to grant the Premises 
Licence, Lewes Golf Club propose to surrender the current Club Premises 
Certificate, but if the decision is made to refuse the issue, then it is proposed to 
continue to use the Club Premises Certificate.

3. Temporary Event Notices

3.1 Lewes Golf Club applied for 2 Temporary Event Notices in 2018, for events in 
May and November.  These Temporary Event Notices were authorised for up to 
11pm and 12 midnight

Page 6



3.2 Temporary Event Notices are intended as a light touch process for the carrying 
on of licensable activities and do not have to be authorised by the licensing 
authority on application.

3.3 Anyone over the age of 18 can apply for a Temporary Event Notice.  A 
‘premises’ can accommodate up to 15 events per calendar year.  The duration 
of an event authorised by a TEN is 168 hours (seven days).  The maximum 
number of people attending at any one time is 499.  The Police and 
Environmental Health are the only bodies authorised under the Licensing Act 
2003 to make representation against a Temporary Event Notice application.

4. Representation received from Responsible Authorities:

a. Police:  Response received – provided steps offered by the applicant are 
attached to the licence if granted, they have no objection.

b. Environmental Health:  No comment

c. Fire Officer:  No comment

d. ESCC – Child Protection:  No comment

e. Trading Standards:  No comment

f. Health & Safety:  No comment

g. Planning:  No comment

h. Public Health:  No comment

i. Home Office Immigration:  No comment

4.1 A copy of the Police response is in Appendix 3

5. Representation received from others

5.1 There have been 13 letters and emails of objection regarding this application 
from members of the public.  These have been submitted on the grounds that 
the application will undermine the licensing objectives of public nuisance, crime 
and disorder, public safety and the protection of children from harm Appendix 4

6. Mediation

6.1 On the basis of the representations received and the opinions expressed, it is 
considered unlikely that this application will be successfully medicated before 
the Sub Committee Hearing.

7. Licensing Sub Committee Considerations

7.1 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives 
in the overall interests of the local community, the Licensing Authority must give 
appropriate weight to:

Page 7



 The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives
 The representations presented by all the parties
 The Home Office Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
 The Lewes District Council Statement of Licensing Policy
 Any other relevant legislation

8. Licensing Policy Considerations:

8.1 Lewes District Council has produced a Statement of Licensing Policy in order to 
comply with its duties and powers under the Licensing act 2003.  It covers the 
licensable activities for retail sale of alcohol which is the subject of this 
application  Appendix 5

8.2 The aims of the Policy are to secure the safety and amenity of residential 
communities, to help ensure a sustainable environment and provide regulation 
of the cultural/entertainment industry, and to promote the four Licensing 
Objectives of the Act; namely:

 Prevention of crime and disorder
 Public safety
 Prevention of public nuisance
 Protection of children from harm

8.3 The three guiding principles (set out in Paragraph 4 of the Licensing Policy) 
adopted by the Council as the Licensing Authority serve as a general guide to 
the Council when it carries out its licensing functions.

8.4 In each case that arises following representation, the Policy states that the 
Council will:

 Consider the potential for public nuisance, crime and disorder and/or danger to 
public safety associated with the style, characteristics and activities of the 
business involved and the rights of residents to peace and quiet.

 Examine the potential steps which could be taken to reduce the risk of public 
nuisance, crime and disorder and/or danger to public safety, particularly in areas 
of dense residential accommodation.

 Consider restricting the hours of trading in cases where there are good grounds 
for believing that the licensing objectives will be or are being undermined.

9. National Guidance

9.1 Relevant sections relating to the Home Office Guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act are attached.

9.2 Particular reference should be made to Appendix 7 paragraphs 2.10 and 2.21

9.3 These sections cover:

 Hearing Regulations  Appendix 6
 The Licensing Objectives Appendix 7

Page 8



 Conditions Appendix 8

10. Other Relevant Legislation

10.1 The Licensing Sub Committee should be mindful of requirements and 
responsibilities placed on them by other legislation.  These include, but are not 
limited to, having due regard to the Equality Act 2010 and the Human Rights 
Act 1998.

11. Options

11.1 When considering this application for a Premises Licence, the following options 
are available to the Sub Committee:

 Grant the Licence in the same terms as it was applied for
 Grant the Licence, but modify the conditions
 Grant the Licence, but modify the hours of licensable activity
 Refuse to issue the Licence

12. Rights of Appeal

12.1 Under Section 181 and Schedule 5 of the Act, there is a right of appeal to the 
Magistrates’ Court in respect of applications  for  new licences.  This right of 
appeal is open to both the applicant and to any person who has made relevant 
representation.  The appeal application must be made within 21 days of the 
written notification of the Sub Committees decision.

13. Recommendation

Members are requested to determine the application made by Lewes Golf Club 
Limited for a new Premises Licence.  Members are requested to give reasons 
for their determination.

14. Financial appraisal

No financial implications arising directly from this report.

15. Legal implications

This Report was considered by the Legal Section ( IKEN-8322-MW) ON 11 
June 2019

Page 9



16. Appendices:

Appendix 1 -  Application for a Premises Licence

Appendix 2 -  Lewes Golf Club ‘Club Premises Certificate’

Appendix 3 -  Police response to consultation

Appendix 4 -  13 x Letter and email representations

Appendix 5 -  Lewes District Council Statement of Licensing Policy

Appendix 6 -  Hearing Regulations

Appendix 7 -  National Guidance – The Licensing Objectives

Appendix 8 -  National Guidance – Conditions

Appendix 9 -  Aerial view of premises showing proximity to residential premises

Page 10



Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 13

Nick.Peeters
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1  (2)



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



 
LEWES DISTRICT COUNCIL 
CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE 
 
 
Club Premises Certificate No:  LN/2005/00307 
 
 
Name and postal address of Club (in whose name this certificate is granted): 
Lewes Golf Club Ltd, Chapel Hill, Lewes, East Sussex  BN7 2BB 
 
Telephone number:  01273 483474 
 
Qualifying club activities authorised by the certificate: 
 
(i) the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to, or to the order of, a 

member of the club for consumption on or off the premises 
(ii) the sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a guest of a member of 

the club for consumption on the premises where the sale takes place. 
 
 
Times authorised for the carrying out of qualifying club activities: 
 
Supply of alcohol 
 
1) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve, 10 a.m. to  
11 p.m. 
2) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m. 
3) On Good Friday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m. 
4) On New Year’s Eve, except on a Sunday, 10 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
5) On New Year’s Eve on a Sunday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m. 
6) On Christmas day the hours shall: 
a. not exceed six and a half hours; 
b. not begin earlier than noon; 
c. not end later than 10.30 p.m; 
d. provide for a break of at least 2 hours, including 3 p.m. to 5 p.m; 
e. not extend for more than three and a half hours after 5 p.m; 
7) On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours to the start of permitted hours on 
the following day. 
 
Restrictions 
 
The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises; 
b) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of alcohol from the 
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours, the consumption of  alcohol on the 
premises by persons taking meals there if the alcohol was supplied as ancillary to the 
meals; 

Page 39

Nick.Peeters_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 2



 
 
 
d) the supply to, or consumption by, any person of alcohol in any premises where they are 
residing. 
 
 
Where the certificate authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: On and Off the Premises 
 
 

 
 
Signed ………………………….…………………    
Director of Planning & Environmental Services 
Southover House 
Southover Road 
Lewes 
East Sussex  BN7 1AB     Issue Date:   27th July 2005 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 
MANDATORY CONDITIONS 
 
Off sales of alcohol 
 
(1) The supply must be made at a time when the premises are open for the purposes of 

supplying alcohol, in accordance with the club premises certificate, to members of 
the club for consumption on the premises. 

(2) Any alcohol supplied for consumption off the premises must be in a sealed 
container. 

(3) Any supply of alcohol for consumption off the premises must be made to a member 
of the club in person 

 
 
Mandatory conditions for the supply of alcohol 
 
(4) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on 

relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible 
promotions in relation to the premises. 

 
In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the 
following activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of 
encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises in a 
manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to crime and 
disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children: 
 

 games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require 
or encourage, individuals to: 
(a) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold 

or supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the 
responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 

(b) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise). 
 

 provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or 
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic 
(other than any promotion or discount available to an individual in respect of 
alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as defined in section 159 of the Act). 

 

 provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage 
or reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or 
less. 

 

 provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises 
of a sporting event, where that provision is dependent on–  
(a) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 
(b) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring. 

 

 Selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, 
or in the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to 

Page 41



condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects 
of drunkenness in any favourable manner. 

 
(5) The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one 

person into the mouth of another (other than where that other person is unable to 
drink without assistance by reason of a disability). 

 
(6) The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to 

customers where it is reasonable available. 
 
(7) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an 

age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of 
alcohol. 

 The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be 
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to 
produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their 
photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 

 
(8) The responsible person shall ensure that: 

(a)  where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption     
      on the premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made    
      up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is   
      available to customers in the following measures: 

(i) beer or cider:  ½ pint 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky:  25 ml or 35 ml, and 
(iii) still wine in a glass:  125 ml, and 

(b)  customers are made aware of the availability of these measures. 
 
 
 
 
 
PLANS:  As approved and attached. 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
CLUB PREMISES CERTIFICATE SUMMARY 
LEWES DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
Club premises certificate number:     LN/2005/00307 
 
 
Name and postal address of Club (in whose name this certificate is granted): 
Lewes Golf Club Ltd, Chapel Hill, Lewes, East Sussex  BN7 2BB 
 
Telephone number:  01273 483474 
 
Qualifying club activities authorised by the certificate: 
 
(i) the supply of alcohol by or on behalf of the club to, or to the order of, a 

member of the club for consumption on or off the premises 
(ii) the sale by retail of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to a guest of a member of 

the club for consumption on the premises where the sale takes place. 
 
 
Times authorised for the carrying out of qualifying club activities: 
 
Supply of alcohol 
 
1) On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, Good Friday or New Year’s Eve, 10 a.m. to  
11 p.m. 
2) On Sundays, other than Christmas Day or New Year’s Eve, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m. 
3) On Good Friday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m. 
4) On New Year’s Eve, except on a Sunday, 10 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
5) On New Year’s Eve on a Sunday, 12 noon to 10.30 p.m. 
6) On Christmas day the hours shall: 
a. not exceed six and a half hours; 
b. not begin earlier than noon; 
c. not end later than 10.30 p.m; 
d. provide for a break of at least 2 hours, including 3 p.m. to 5 p.m; 
e. not extend for more than three and a half hours after 5 p.m; 
7) On New Year’s Eve from the end of permitted hours to the start of permitted hours on 
the following day. 
 
Restrictions 
 
The above restrictions do not prohibit: 
a) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the consumption of alcohol on the 
premises; 
b) during the first twenty minutes after the above hours, the taking of alcohol from the 
premises, unless the alcohol is supplied or taken in an open vessel; 
c) during the first thirty minutes after the above hours, the consumption of  alcohol on the 
premises by persons taking meals there if the alcohol was supplied as ancillary to the 
meals; 

Page 43



 
 
 
d) the supply to, or consumption by, any person of alcohol in any premises where they are 
residing. 
 
 
Where the certificate authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off 
supplies: On and Off the Premises 
 
 
State whether access to the club premises by children is restricted or prohibited: n/a 

Page 44



Appendix 3 

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

Nick.Peeters_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4  (1)



P
age 48



Page 49



Page 50



Appendix 4 (2)

From:
Sent: 22 May 2019 13:54
To: Sue Lindsey
Subject: Lewes Golf Club alcohol licence extension

Dear Sue Lindsey,
I understand that you are fielding public comments on this Application for 
which I do not
have reference details. This, then, is an OBJECTION to the Application by 
Lewes Golf
Club to extend their alcohol licensing hours to virtually full time, 
certainly well beyond
what might be considered “golfing” hours. I am aware that this club is 
having difficulty
recruiting new golfing members, and the reason often given is the very 
poor access to
the club, up and down Chapel Hill. They may well be hoping to improve 
their finances
by broadening their appeal beyond active golfers. Access issues will 
remain
unimproved.
My interest in this matter is that my home directly accesses Chapel Hill, 
and I am fully
aware of the problems that Golf Club members cause to residents on a daily 
basis,
driving at too great a speed, driving on the disintegrating pavement in 
cars that are
unsuitably large, forcing pedestrians to take shelter when they pass etc. 
etc. Clearly the
road is not fit for their purpose. The idea that the volume of traffic 
that the Club
generates might increase, and the hours extend further into those of 
darkness, can only
increase the anxiety, inconvenience and likely personal danger caused to 
those who
live on Chapel Hill (and, indeed to their pets). The notion that this 
particular application
is also likely to increase the possibility of alcohol-fuelled driving on 
what is in any event
an unsuitable and dangerous single track roadway, precipitous on it’s 
western flank, fills
me with reasoned horror.
This Application should be refused for the reasons given. This is a GOLF 
club, not a
DRINKING club.

Yours faithfully,
Christopher Dorling
The Old Coach House
Lewes BN7 2BE

Page 51



Page 52



Page 53

Nick.Peeters_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4  (3)



Page 54



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4  (4)

From: Geoffrey Bush
Sent: 22 May 2019 10:33
To: Sue Lindsey
Subject: Lewes Gof Club - Premises Licence Application

Dear Miss Lindsey

As a daily pedestrian user of Chapel Hill I object to the application 
submitted for a Premises
Licence by the Lewes Golf Club on the following grounds:

Public safety: there has been a noticeable increase recently in traffic up 
and down this narrow
single track road, with cars, vans and even lorries driving on part of the 
footpath endangering
pedestrians such as myself. The proposed application can only aggravate 
the problem.

Public nuisance: the increased volume of traffic on this steep road 
threatens the wellbeing and
health of residents due to gaseous emissions as well as the noise of 
vehicles in first, second or
reverse gears. A formerly quiet residential side street is being turned 
into a very busy
thoroughfare for which it is entirely unsuitable. The proposed application 
can only aggravate
the problem.

Protection of children from harm: Chapel Hill is much used by families at 
the weekends as
access to the Downs. Children, as well as their parents, are at risk from 
the dangers noted
above, especially from pollution from traffic emissions. The proposed 
application can only
aggravate the problem.

I note that Chapel Hill is the one and only access route to the Golf Club.

Yours sincerely

Geoffrey Bush, Cliffehanger, Cuilfail, Lewes.

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59

Nick.Peeters_4
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4  (5)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4  (8)

Subject: FW: Letter of Objection to extending licensing hours at Lewes 
Golf Club
Attachments: IMG_1987.jpg; IMG_1988.jpg; RE: Letter of Objection to 
extending licensing
hours at Lewes Golf Club

From: Info
Sent: 21 May 2019 11:48
To: licensing; Sue Lindsey

Subject: Letter of Objection to extending licensing hours at Lewes Golf 
Club

Lion House 8/9 Chapel Hill Lewes Lewes. BN7 2BB

Licensing Authority

We wish to object to the current application by Lewes Golf Club to extend 
their licensing
hours.

Traffic along Chapel Hill is currently a matter of intense dissatisfaction 
to all the
residents and to pedestrians who use it. A significant proportion of the 
existing traffic,
going to and from the Golf Course at the top of Chapel Hill, ignore the 
law either by
mounting the pavement or exceeding the speed limit. Our property has been 
struck on 5
occasions in the last 12 months by vehicles which fail to stop or provide 
insurance
details. Historic stone kerbstones and brick paviours have also been 
extensively
damaged by vehicular traffic that they were never intended to bear. 
Furthermore the
mandatory width limit of 7’ which applies to the full length of Chapel 
Hill is also flouted,
and consequent damage caused by over-sized vehicles to lamp posts and 
property is
already a very real problem. The Golf Club have shown themselves unable to 
deal with
the existing problems caused by their current clientele (members, guests 
and visitors).
We have no doubt that the Club management take their responsibilities 
seriously, and
have tried their best to deal with these problems. Unfortunately their 
efforts have not
been entirely successful. Recent temporary scaffolding placed on the 
pavement along

Page 65



Chapel Hill at the pinch point has kept all traffic off the pavement, 
proving that
compliance is possible and suggesting that non-compliance is wilful.

Existing traffic volume, and the behaviour of some of that traffic, is 
already a very
significant b***dy nuisance. Pedestrians of all ages are currently put at 
risk by the
criminal behaviour of a minority (it is a crime to drive on the pavement 
or to ignore the
mandatory width limit or speed limit). We feel that the application to 
extend licensing
hours and widen the clientele will simply turn Lewes Golf Club into a pub, 
thereby
adding further misery to the residents of Chapel Hill and danger to 
pedestrians. We
imagine that the Club will be even less successful in controlling the 
behaviour of random
visitors and their vehicles. To license the club to sell alcohol to all 
comers at the top of a
very steep hill, accessed by a long and narrow single track road, without 
lighting beyond
the residential section, which existing traffic is unable to navigate 
properly without
endangering pedestrians and residents, would seem to be a recipe for 
disaster for all
concerned and would be manifestly unsafe and unreasonable. The fact that 
the club is
situated so close to the edge of a huge near vertical chalk cliff face 
(visible to all traffic
driving into Lewes just before the tunnel mouth) should also sound loud 
alarm bells to
anyone interested in public safety. We hope that the application will be 
rejected.

Jonathan Barrett
Gillian Barrett

Attached 2 pictures of some recent damage.

Page 66



Page 67

Nick.Peeters_5
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4  (9)



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Appendix 4  (10)

From: martha bush
Sent: 22 May 2019 14:17
To: Sue Lindsey
Subject: Lewes Golf Club --Premises Licence Application

This is to object to the granting of a new and different license to the 
Lewes Golf Club on
the following grounds:

Public Safety

Chapel Hill is the only route to the golf club and an important road of 
access to the
Downs, frequently used by families on foot including young children and 
dogs. These
groups are sometimes quite large. Adding to this congestion, cars driven 
by person
seeking alcohol and not knowing the hazards of the route are a threat to 
public safety
particularly as backing down or up the hill is often required to allow 
vehicles to pass.
There is often no way for pedestrians to get out of the way of these 
manoeuvres.
Drivers must simply wait as small children make their way to a passing 
place.

There are precipices on the western side of the road. Persons who are 
influenced by
alcohol could experience bravado in approaching and accessing these cliffs 
which might
end in tragedy.

PUBLIC NUISANCE

I have witnessed drivers and walkers who feel the nuisance of the 
situation as it is
today, with the current traffic,display unreasonable behaviour (refusing 
to move or give
way). This is bound to increase. Pedestrians under the influence of 
alcohol may or may
not become more strident and unreasonable or foolhardy in such situations.

PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM

The above will encourage volatile behaviour on this overused inadequate 
access to the
Downs. All day alcohol consumption will encourage this at times of day 
when children
should be able to enjoy access to the Downs. Alcohol which can be 
purchased and then
drunk in relative privacy will be bought by young adults and shared with 
younger

Page 71



children in such an environment..

i
PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER

The police can confirm that there has been an increase in crime and 
disorder in this part
of Lewes. This may be because those inclined to misuse "substances" know 
that there
is a quick escape to the Downs and the golf course and seek this option. 
This license
would encourage this area to become one of Lewes' safer venues for 
undesirable and
threatening behaviour which is on the increase.

Children should not find themselves in the position of the undesirable 
adult behaviour
which this potential volatile situation is going to encouraged from 9am in 
the morning.

Yours sincerely,

MEL Bush

Page 72



Page 73

Nick.Peeters_6
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4  (11)



Page 74



P
age 75

Nick.Peeters_7
Typewritten Text
Appendix 4  (12)



P
age 76



P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 (14)

From: Ruth Rach
Sent: 16 May 2019 13:16
To: Sue Lindsey
Subject: PS Lewes Golf Club application to extend license

Hi Sue

have just sent off a reworded version of Chapel Hill Residents. Thank you 
for your advice on
this.

One important question for you concerns pricing.

At the moment, drink prices at the Golf Club are very attractive to their 
customers, i e
considerably lower compared to Lewes pubs.

If the Club were granted a license to both extend their opening hours and 
include members of the
public, this might not please their members but would obviously be an 
enormous incentive to
pull in new customers with nothing more than cheap booze on their mind. 
And if you are in any
doubt about what people (especially youngsters) high on cheap booze are 
capable of you need
look no further than the public nuisance created near the Golf Course and 
all along Chapel Hill
on a regular basis during Guy Fawkes Night, despite the extra police men 
deployed to control
them.

Yours sincerely

Ruth Rach

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 (15)

From: Ruth Rach
Sent: 20 May 2019 21:10
To: Sue Lindsey
Subject: Extension of Golf club licensing

Dear Sue
I’m attaching a photo from Chapel Hill, Lewes, to complement my Letter of 
objection and
illustrate how vehicles try to squeeze past pedestrians on our single 
track road. At the same time,
they are determined to squeeze past each other (rather than to reverse, 
another precarious
manoeuvre) and can only achieve this by illegally mounting the pavement.
This happens numerous times, every day.
Ruth Rach

Sent from my iPad

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 (17)

From: Ruth Rach
Sent: 16 May 2019 13:00
To: Sue Lindsey
Cc:
Subject: Lewes Golf Club Extension of License Application

As residents of Chapel Hill Lewes we are very concerned about the recent 
application of
the Lewes Golf Club to
1. extend the "Sale of alcohol for consumption on and off the premises 

from 9 am to 11
pm Monday to Sunday“ and
2. offer alcohol“ to members of the public who walk past the premises as 

part of their
leisure activity".

We wish to object for the following reasons.

Public Safety / Protection of children from harm
Chapel Hill is a steep single track lane leading up to the South Downs. It 
is located in a
quiet residential area of Lewes and frequently used by hikers, dog 
walkers, families and
children. It is also the only access route to the Lewes Golf Club. In 
recent years, we
have had increasing problems with ever increasing numbers of aggressive 
drivers, Golf
Club members as well as oversize supply vehicles, speeding up and down the 
hill,
mounting pavements and putting the lives of pedestrians at risk. Extending 
the licence
would further increase the number of vehicles and incidents caused by ever 
more
pressurised drivers. It would therefore be detrimental to the safety and 
amenity of local
residents and walkers.

Public Nuisance / Crime and Disorder
Chapel Hill is precariously close to steep cliff edges only inadequately 
protected by
fences and shrubbery. If the Golf Club License were extended to members of 
the public
until the small hours, who would stop them from wandering off the premises 
in an
inebriated state, endangering their own lives and the lives of others? Who 
would stop
them from breaking glasses, creating noise, littering and indulging in 
other anti social
behaviour, especially after dark? Given the pressure the local police are 
under it is hard
to envisage that extra manpower would be made available to control the 
area until 11

Page 87



pm.

We hope that your decision will reflect the aims as set out in the 
Licensing Act 2003 and
help secure the safety and amenity of our residential community by 
protecting us and
the wider public from crime, noise, harm, disorder and public nuisance.

Ruth Rach
Jonathan Barrett
Gilly Barrett
Peter Weston
Deborah Mitchell
Adam Levene

Page 88



Appendix 4 (18)

From: Sue Hammond
Sent: 15 May 2019 00:27
To: Sue Lindsey
Subject: Lewes Golf Club - Premises Licence Application

Dear Sue Lindsey

It is with great concern that I have heard about the application of Lewes 
Golf Club to extend the
sale of alcohol from 9am to 11pm, seven days of the week and to offer 
alcohol to walkers and
ramblers going past the club house.

Chapel Hill is an extremely narrow, steep, single track road where 
vehicles have extreme
difficulty passing one another, frequently necessitating difficult 
reversing down the hill. The
footway is very narrow, such that pedestrians are frequently forced to 
walk on the road - those
pushing prams always do.

Apart from the golfers, Chapel Hill is used at all times of the day by 
those who appear to be
"joyriders", driving up the hill at some speed, hoping to avoid meeting 
anyone coming down.
Residents have, on occasions, even been touched/nudged out of the way by 
vehicles trying to get
past, either intentionally or unintentionally. Animals have been injured 
and killed on the road and
there have often been harsh words exchanged between various parties, due 
to the frustration and
difficulties experienced on the hill.

So, from the point of view of public safety and nuisance, I am alarmed at 
the prospect of any
increase in traffic (brought about by extending the licencing hours) 
putting those walking and
cycling at more risk than they are at present.

Chapel Hill is one of the main access roads onto the Downs and is 
frequently highlighted in the
national press. It is well-known to ramblers, runners, cyclists, dog 
walkers and, as such, is
frequently very well used. It is in a conservation area and leads onto an 
site of SSSI. Any
increase in vehicle numbers will further spoil the amenity of the area and 
cause further distress
and nuisance to residents, particularly in the evening and later at night.

Further up the Hill the banks offer ready access to steep and horrific 
drops over the cliff. It

Page 89



would not be difficult to wander over in the wrong direction in the dark, 
with fatal results,
particularly if alcohol was involved. As it is, young people frequently 
congregate up the hill - I
cannot say why - and then return down again later at night, disturbing 
residents who are trying to
rest.

So for reasons of public safety, disturbance and nuisance to residents, 
please regard this a a
formal objection to the Golf Club's proposal to extend the licensing hours 
and facilities.

yours sincerely

Susan Hammond

Page 90



 

 1 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY 
 
 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lewes District Council 
Licensing Section 
Southover House 
Southover Road 
Lewes 
East Sussex BN7 1AB 
 
licensing@lewes.gov.uk 
Telephone number: 01273 471600 

Page 91

mailto:licensing@lewes.gov.uk
Nick.Peeters_8
Typewritten Text
Appendix 5



 

 2 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 

Lewes District Council makes this Statement of Licensing Policy in order to comply with its 
duties and powers under the Licensing Act 2003, ‘the Act’. 

  
Licensing is about regulating licensable activities on licensed premises, qualifying clubs 
and at permitted temporary activities. 

 
1.1 THE SCOPE OF THIS POLICY COVERS THE FOLLOWING 

 

 Retail sale of alcohol 

 The supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club, or to the order of a member of the 
club 

 The provision of regulated entertainment 

 The provision of late night refreshment 
 
1.2 THE AIMS OF THIS POLICY ARE TO: 

 

 Secure the safety and amenity of residential communities 

 Help to ensure a sustainable environment and provide regulation of the 
cultural/entertainment industry 

 Promote the Licensing Objectives as set out in the Act 
 
1.3 THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES ARE: 

 

 Prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 Prevention of public nuisance 

 Protection of children from harm 
 
IN MAKING THIS POLICY, LEWES DISTRICT COUNCIL RECOGNISES THE NEED TO: 

 

 Protect the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and noise 
nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises, 

 

 Give Police and Licensing Authorities the powers they need to effectively manage 
and police the night-time economy and take action against those premises that are 
causing problems, 

 

 Provide a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local 
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about 
the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area 

 

 Encourage greater community involvement in licensing decisions and give local 
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may 
affect them. 

 

Page 92



 

 3 

1.4 THIS STATEMENT PROVIDES GUIDANCE .. 
 
to the police, applicants, objectors and residents on the general approach that the Council 
(acting through its Licensing Committee) will take when making licensing decisions. 
 
The following will be taken into account when licensing decisions are being made: 
 

 The Council as licensing authority must carry out its functions under the Act with a 
view to promoting the Licensing Objectives. 

 Each licence application will be given individual consideration on its merits. 

 When making its decisions, the Council will have regard to the matters contained 
in this Statement and to any Government guidance that is issued from time to 
time. 

 That the Council will have regard to the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 
and, in particular, Article 6 (right to a fair and public hearing); Article 8 (right to 
respect for home, private and family life) and Article 1 of the First Protocol (right to 
peaceful enjoyment of property and possessions). 

 That the Council will have due regard to its Equality Duty under the Equality Act 
2010 to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; to 
advance equality of opportunity; and to foster good relations between people who 
share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.  The protected  
characteristics are: age, disability, gender re-assignment, marriage and civil 
partnership (but only in respect of eliminating unlawful discrimination), pregnancy 
and maternity, race – this includes ethnic or national origins, colour or nationality, 
religion or belief – this includes lack of belief, sex (gender) and sexual orientation.  
In accordance with this Duty the Council publishes equalities information annually 
on the Council’s website. 

 That when exercising a licensing function, the Council will have due regard to its 
duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the provisions of the 
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, any local public service 
agreements relating to the reduction of public place violence, and the Immigration 
Act 2016. 

 
1.5 This Statement takes effect on 7th December 2017 for a period of 5 years and will be kept 

under review and revised/amended as required, following consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



 

 4 

2. LOCAL FEATURES 
 
2.1 Lewes District Council covers an area of 113 square miles  (292 sq km) and is home to 

approximately 100,000 people.  Bordered by the varied landscape of the Downs to the 
south and the Weald to the north, it has 9 miles (14.5 km) of coastline.  From coastal strip 
to rural countryside, Lewes District comprises a rich mix of town and village communities.  
The District population is concentrated to the coast with half of all residents living in the 
towns of Seaford, Newhaven, Peacehaven, Telscombe Cliffs and East Saltdean, while 
inland Lewes is the County Town of East Sussex. There are also numerous villages and 
hamlets within the area, which vary in size and form, and the District has one of the fastest 
growing populations in the South of England. 

 
2.2 The main focus for licensed activities is in the Town Centres where there is a varied mix of 

premises from clubs, pubs, café/bars, restaurants, and large stores to smaller retail outlets 
for off licence sales.  In the rural area there are a great number of village pubs, which are 
very much part of the community and supporting leisure and local activities. 

 
2.3 Overall, the District has approximately 340 premises licensed under the Act, catering for 

the needs of the community and with few late night venues, club culture at the moment is 
not highly developed or wide spread. 

 

Page 94



 

 5 

3. DELEGATION OF FUNCTIONS 
 
 Licensing decisions and functions may be taken or carried out by the Council’s Licensing 

Committee or delegated to a Licensing Sub-Committee or in appropriate cases, officers of 
the Council.  The scheme of delegation for dealing with licensing matters, under the 
Licensing Act 2003, is set out below: 

 
Matter to be dealt with Full Committee Sub-Committee Officers 

Application for a personal licence  If police objection 
made 

If no objection 
made 

Application for personal licence with 
unspent convictions and police objection 

 All cases  

Determination of minor variation   All cases 

Application for premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application for provisional settlement  If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application to vary premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 If relevant 
representation 
made 

If no relevant 
representation 
made 

Application to vary designated premises 
supervisor 

 If police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Request to be removed as designated 
premises supervisor 

  All cases 

Application for transfer of premises licence  If police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Application for Interim Authorities  If police objection 
made 

All other cases 

Application to review premises licence/club 
premises certificate 

 All cases  

Decision on whether complaint is 
irrelevant, frivolous, vexatious etc. 

  All cases 

Decision to object when Council is a 
consultee and not the Licensing Authority  

 All cases  

Determination of application to vary 
premises licence at community premises 
to include alternative licence condition 

 If police objection 
made 

All cases 

Determination of an objection to a 
temporary Event Notice 

 All cases  

Decision to make a representation on 
behalf of the Licensing Authority 

  All cases 

Application for authorisation of films 
already classified by British Board of Film 
Classification (BBFC) 

  
All cases 

 

Application for authorisation of films not 
already classified by British Board of Film 
Classification (BBFC), or the Council 
 

   
All cases 

 

Page 95



 

 6 

4. GENERAL STATEMENT OF GUIDING PRINCIPLES 
 
4.1 The following principles have been adopted by the Council as a licensing authority.  These 

principles will serve as a general guide to the Council when it carries out its licensing 
functions. 

 
 PRINCIPLE 1 
 Issues of nuisance, noise, public safety and crime and disorder associated with the 

character, number and proximity of licensed premises in any one area (cumulative impact) 
will be addressed by the means set out in paragraph 5.1.5 of this Statement.  However, if 
there is evidence to suggest that these means are unsuccessful in combating the issues 
referred to above, then the Council will consider reviewing its policy with a view to 
restricting the grant of licences to new premises in the affected area. 

 
 PRINCIPLE 2 
 The Council acknowledges that longer opening hours can help to ensure that the number 

of people leaving licensed premises at the same time is reduced. 
 
 PRINCIPLE 3 
 The Council will limit the access of children to licensed premises where this is appropriate 

to protect them from harm. 
 
5. THE PRINCIPLES IN DETAIL 
 
5.1 PRINCIPLE 1 

Issues of nuisance, noise, public safety and crime and disorder associated with the 
character, number and proximity of licensed premises in any one area (cumulative impact) 
will be addressed by the means set out in paragraph 5.1.5 of this Statement.  However, if 
there is evidence to suggest that these means are unsuccessful in combating the issues 
referred to above, then the Council will consider reviewing its policy with a view to 
restricting the grant of licences to new premises in the affected areas. 
 
5.1.1 This is intended to: 

 Promote the prevention of crime and disorder 

 Promote public safety 

 Address the issue of cumulative impact  
 

5.1.2 The question of need for an additional licensed facility whether pub, club etc. is not 
covered by this policy but will be a matter for planning policies and strategies and 
for the area/district as a whole 

 
5.1.3 Licensed premises, especially those offering late night/early morning 

entertainment, alcohol and refreshment (for large numbers of people) can be a 
source of crime and disorder and applicants are recommended to seek advice 
from the Council’s Licensing Officer and the Police as well as taking into account 
local planning and transport policies, tourism, cultural and crime prevention 
strategies and local social demographic characteristics when preparing application 

Page 96



 

 7 

and operation schedules which will be of benefit to the Licensing Authority when 
determining the application.   Guidance regarding these policies and other specific 
local matters can be obtained from the Council’s Licensing Officer – see contact 
details (paragraph 8) 

 
5.1.4 The Council will support: 

 diversity of premises to ensure a mix of a different type of licensed 
premises, particularly in areas where there is a high density of such 
premises 

 care and control of premises by effective management and supervision 
both within and outside the premises. This is a key factor in reducing 
crime and disorder and applicants for premises licences in particular 
should address these issues within their respective operating schedules 

 good quality training for staff employed within the licensing trade and the 
obtaining of the accredited licensing qualification for bar staff and personal 
licence holders. The Council believes that proper staff training plays an 
important role in the promotion of the licencing objectives 

 café bar conditions where the sale of alcohol and other beverages are by 
a waiter/waitress service for consumption by persons seated at tables or 
equivalent and substantial refreshments are available during operating 
hours. 

 
5.1.5 Licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general control of nuisance 

and anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the licensed 
premises and, therefore, beyond the direct control of the licence holder,  the club 
or responsible person concerned. Nonetheless, it is a key aspect of such control 
and licensing plays a part in the management of the night-time economy.  If there 
are problems in a particular area with nuisance, crime and disorder and those 
problems are associated with the character, number or proximity of licenced 
premises in the area, the Council will seek to address those problems by the 
following means: 

 Planning Controls 

 The use of relevant and appropriate licence conditions.  
(However, see paragraph 6.5) 

 Positive measures to create a safe and clean environment in partnership 
with local businesses, transport operations and other Council departments 

 Application of the powers of the Council to designate parts of the district 
as places where alcohol may not be consumed in public and the 
confiscation of alcohol from adults and children in such designated places 

 Liaise with Police over the enforcement of disorder and anti-social 
behaviour, including the issue of fixed penalty notices 

 The seeking of anti-social behaviour orders by the Council in appropriate 
cases 

 The prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at such 
premises who is selling alcohol to people who are drunk or under age 

Page 97



 

 8 

 Work in partnership with Police to utilise powers to close down instantly 
for up to 24 hours any licensed premises or temporary event on grounds 
of disorder, the likelihood of disorder, or noise emanating from the 
premises causing a nuisance. 

 
The list is not exhaustive of the measures that the Council may consider or take. 
 

 5.1.6 Any objection to a licence application or variation on the grounds of negative   
cumulative impact must be relevant and impact on one or more of the licensing 
objectives. 

 
5.2  PRINCIPLE 2 

The Council acknowledges that longer opening hours can help to ensure that the 
number of people leaving licensed premises at the same time is reduced. 

 
5.2.1 This is intended to: 

 promote the prevention of crime and disorder 

 promote public safety 

 promote the prevention of public nuisance 
 
5.2.2 It is recognised by the Council that longer licensing hours (with regard to the sale 

of alcohol) may help to ensure that the number of customers leaving premises 
simultaneously is avoided. Fixed and artificially early closing times can encourage, 
in the case of sales of alcohol, rapid binge drinking close to closing times and are 
a key cause of disorder and disturbance when large numbers of customers are 
required to leave premises at the same time. 

 
5.2.3 However, there is no general presumption in favour of lengthening licensing hours. 

The four licensing objectives will be paramount considerations at all times and 
each case judged on its individual merits. 

 
5.2.4 Any person has a right to make representations concerning applications for 

premises licences and club certificates and hours of trading and to have those 
representations given due regard. 

 
5.2.5 In each case that arises following objections/representations the Council will: 

 consider the potential for public nuisance, crime and disorder and/or 
danger to public safety associated with the style, characteristics and 
activities of the business involved and the rights of residents to peace and 
quiet 

 examine the potential steps which could be taken to reduce the risk of 
public nuisance, crime and disorder and/or danger to public safety, 
particularly in areas of dense residential accommodation 

 consider restricting the hours of trading in cases where there are good 
grounds for believing that the licensing objectives will be or are being 
undermined 

 

Page 98



 

 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 PRINCIPLE 3 

5.3.1 The Council will limit the access of children to licenced premises where this is 
necessary to protect them from harm. 

  
 This is intended to: 

 promote the protection of children from harm 

 address the issue of children in licensed premises, including cinemas and 
other public entertainment 

5.3.2 No policy can anticipate every issue of concern that could arise in respect of 
children with regard to individual premises. Consideration of the individual merits 
of each application are therefore the best mechanism for judging such matters. 

 
5.3.3 The Council will take particular account when: 

 there have been convictions for serving alcohol to minors 

 there is evidence of underage drinking 

 there is evidence of drug taking or dealing 

 there is a strong element of gambling 

 entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is commonly provided 

 the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or 
primary purpose of the services provided at those premises 

 
5.3.4 Complete bans will be rare, but the options for limiting the access of children, 

where appropriate, to prevent harm include:  

 limitations on the hours when children may be present 

 age limitations (below 18 years) 

 limitations or exclusions when certain activities are taking place 

 requirements for an accompanying adult 

 full exclusion of people under 18 years from the premises when any 
licensable activities are taking place 

 
5.3.5 The Council will not impose conditions that require licensed premises to admit 

children. Where it is not appropriate for a licensing restriction the decision to admit 
children will be a matter for the discretion of the individual licensee or club. 

 
5.3.6 CHILDREN AND CINEMAS 
 

In the case of premises giving film exhibitions, the Council expects licensees to 
impose conditions that children will be restricted from viewing age-restricted films 
classified in accordance with the recommendations of the British Board of Film 
Classifications or the Local Authority. 

 

Page 99



 

 10 

  
5.3.7 CHILDREN AND PUBLIC ENTERTAINMENTS 
   

Where such entertainments are due to take place, the Council will expect an adequate 
number of adults to be present for health and safety reasons. The number of adults 
required should be calculated on the basis of a risk assessment. The Council will also take 
into account considerations such as the size of the venue, the number and ages of the 
children present and the type of activity involved. 

 
6. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1 LIVE MUSIC, DANCING & THEATRE 
 

The Council recognises the need to encourage and promote live music, dance and theatre 
for the wider cultural benefits of the community. The Council will seek to obtain a balance 
between the potential for limited neighbourhood disturbance and the benefits of cultural 
activities, particularly for children, and will not allow the views of the few to predominate 
over the general interests of the community. 

 
The Council will only attach licence conditions that are reasonable, proportionate and 
appropriate for the promotion of the licencing objectives. The Council is aware of the need 
to avoid measures as far as possible that deter live music, dancing and theatre for 
example by imposing indirect costs of a disproportionate nature. 

 
The Council is aware of the value to the community of a broad range of cultural 
entertainments, particularly live music, dancing and theatre. The Council wishes to 
encourage them for the benefit of all. 

 
6.2 SHOPS, STORES AND SUPERMARKETS 
 

6.2.1 Shops, stores and supermarkets should be free to provide sales of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises at any time when the retail outlet is open. 

 
6.2.2 The Council will generally permit the sale of alcohol when the retail outlet is open 

for shopping. 
 
6.2.3 In certain circumstances, however, it may be appropriate to impose a limitation, for 

example, following police representations in the case of some shops known to be 
a focus of disorder and disturbance because youths gather there. 

 
6.2.4 When determining an application for a premises licence the Council has no 

obligation to consider the rights of workers employed. These are covered by 
separate legislation. 

 
6.2.5 The impact on workers of extended hours permitted by a premises licence is a 

contractual matter to be resolved between the employer and employee, and the 
Council will not seek to intervene in these matters. 

 

Page 100



 

 11 

 
 
 
6.3  INTEGRATION OF STRATEGIES 
 

6.3.1 The Council is ensuring that this Statement of Policy integrates with crime 
prevention, anti-social behaviour, planning, transport, tourism and cultural 
strategies by: 

 Having regard to the Lead Agency Protocol drawn up between Sussex 
Police, Local Authorities, the Fire and Rescue Service and Trading 
Standards. 

 Liaising and consulting with Sussex Police, with the Crime and 
Community Disorder Reduction Partnership and by following the guidance 
in community safety and crime disorder strategies 

 Liaising and consulting with East Sussex Fire and Rescue Service and by 
following the guidance in fire safety strategies and protocols 

 Liaising and consulting with the Local Strategic Partnership and Area 
Partnerships 

 Liaising and consulting with the Planning Authority  

 Liaising and consulting with the Highway Authority 

 Liaising and consulting with the Local Health Authority  

 Liaising and consulting with the Immigration Authority 

 Liaising and consulting with tourism, stakeholder and business groups 
such as the local Chamber of Commerce 

 Liaising and consulting with East Sussex County Council’s Trading 
Standards Department 

 Having regard to any future guidance issued in relation to the Private 
Security Industry Act 2001 including any liaison or information sharing 
protocols 

 Having regard to the Home Office “Safer Clubbing Guide” 
 
6.3.2 Specific conditions may be attached to premises licences to reflect local crime 

prevention strategies (however see paragraph 6.5). 
 
 Such conditions may include: 

 the use of closed circuit television cameras 

 the provision and use of shatterproof drinking containers 

 a drugs and weapons search policy 

 the use of registered door supervisors under Private Security Industry Act 
2001 

 specialised lighting requirements 

 restrictions on hours opening 
  
 6.3.3 Certificates issued to club premises will reflect local crime prevention strategies 

             and may include any or all of the requirements listed above. Account will also be  
             taken of any public spaces protection orders and guidelines that  
 regulate street drinking. 

Page 101



 

 12 

 
6.3.4 Club owners and promotors will be expected to have regard to safer clubbing 

guidance for Licencing Authorities, club managers and promotors. The Council will 
ensure that licenced premises are designed and run in a way that maximises the 
safety of customers and staff. 

 
6.3.5 The Council will take account of the need to disperse people quickly and safely 

from town centres to avoid concentrations which may produce disorder and 
disturbance. The Council will also take into account any protocols agreed between 
the police and other licencing enforcement agencies.  

 
6.3.6 The Council’s planning and licencing regimes are separate, they involve 

consideration of different (albeit related) matters. The Licencing Committee will not 
consider representations that relate to planning rather than licencing issues and 
will not be bound by decisions that are made by the Planning Committee, and vice 
versa. 

 
6.3.7 The grant of a premises licence shall not be regarded as an indication that 

planning permission or building regulations approval has been (or will in the future 
be) granted. A separate application for planning consent, change of use and/or 
building regulations approval must always be made. Ideally, planning consent 
should be obtained before a licencing application is submitted. 

 
6.4  OTHER LEGISLATION 

 
6.4.1 This policy shall avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes wherever possible.  

In this regard, reference shall be made to the following : 
 
6.4.2 HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 
The Council’s Environmental Health inspection staff will normally have visited 
licenced premises to assess/enforce health and safety requirements. 
 
Certain premises will fall outside the responsibility of the Environmental Health 
Department and will be subject to regulation/enforcement by the Health and Safety 
Executive (HSE). 
 
Health and Safety regulations impose a range of general and specific duties on 
employees, employers, operators of venues and members of the public. Matters 
arising out of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and associated 
regulations will not be addressed by the imposition of licensing conditions unless 
they are appropriate for the promotion of the licencing objectives. 

 

Page 102



 

 13 

6.4.3   SMOKING 
   

The Health Act 2006 introduced the smoke free provisions that protect employees 
and the public from the harmful effects of second hand smoke. The Council will be 
responsible for enforcing these provisions and will offer information advice and 
support to businesses so they can meet their legal obligations. Managers of 
licensed premises will have a legal responsibility to prevent smoking. 

  
 

6.4.4 FIRE SAFETY 
 

 Operators of licensed premises have duties under various fire safety regulations 
and the same considerations as above will apply. 

 
6.4.5 FOOD HYGIENE  
  
 Premises selling alcohol and/or premises engaged in a food business will be 

registered with Lewes District Council and subject to risk-based food hygiene 
inspections at regular intervals. 

 
6.4.6  NOISE  
 
 Statutory and Public nuisances are dealt with by the Environmental Health 

Department under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and associated 
legislation. Noise from commercial premises may also be covered by the 
legislation. 

 
6.4.7 WASTE 
 
 Complaints relating to the accumulation and storage of waste will be dealt with by 

the Council under the provisions of any appropriate legislation. 
 

6.5  STANDARD CONDITIONS 
 

If a responsible authority or any other person does not raise any representations 
about a licencing application made to the Council, it is the duty of the Council to 
grant the licence or Club Premises Certificate subject only to conditions that are 
consistent with the operating schedule or club operating schedule and any 
mandatory conditions prescribed in the 2003 Act itself. 
 
The Council may not therefore impose any conditions unless its discretion has 
been engaged following the making of relevant representations. It may then only 
impose such conditions that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 
arising out of consideration of the representations. 
 
The Council will tailor its own conditions to the size, type, location and 
characteristics and activities taking place at the premises concerned. 

 

Page 103



 

 14 

6.6  REVIEW AND ENFORCEMENT 
 

6.6.1 The Licensing Authority is a responsible authority under the Licensing Act and can 
make representations and call a review. The Licencing Authority through the 
Licencing Officer will always pursue partnership working between agencies and 
other responsible authorities to resolve problems and concerns regarding 
premises under the licencing objectives. 

 
6.6.2 Enforcement of the licensing law, public safety and the inspection of licensed/club 

premises will be undertaken by the relevant authorities in accordance with local 
agreements between Sussex Police, East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service, Trading 
Standards and the Licencing Authorities in Sussex. 

 
6.6.3 Attention is drawn to the targeting of agreed problems and high risk premises 

requiring greater attention as may be identified from time to time by the relevant 
enforcement agencies. Inspections of premises will be on a risk assessed basis, to 
be undertaken when and if necessary. 

 
6.6.4 The provisions set out in the Act for calling a review or making representations 

represent a key protector for the community where there are concerns about an 
application or problems associated with premises under crime and disorder, public 
safety, public nuisance and the protection of children from harm. 

 
6.6.5 Following the grant of a premises licence or club certificate a responsible authority 

or any other person regardless of where they live, may ask the Council to review 
the licence/club certificate because of matters arising at the premises in 
connection with any of the four licensing objectives. 

 
6.6.6 In every case, the application for a review must relate to particular premises for 

which a premises licence or club certificate is in existence and must be relevant to 
the promotion of the licencing objectives. 

 
6.6.7 The Council will endeavour to give licence/certificate holders early notification of 

their concerns about problems identified at particular premises in partnership with 
the other enforcement agencies. This does not affect the right of any other person 
to call a review under the provisions of the Act. 

 
6.6.8 Where concerns are raised by residents or any other person about an application 

or grounds to seek a review the Licencing Authority would expect those affected 
parties to make a relevant representation or apply for a review in their own right. 

 
6.6.9 The Licencing Authority may choose to exercise its powers as a responsible 

authority and to call a review or make representations in any situation that it 
deems appropriate on the merits of any individual case. 

 

Page 104



 

 15 

7. LATE NIGHT LEVY 
  

Following the introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 the 
licensing authority may introduce a late night levy. The levy would relate to a late night 
supply period which begins at or after midnight and ends at or before 6am. Any premises 
which are not subject to an exemption who supply alcohol during the supply period on any 
night of the year would be required to pay the late night levy, the level of which is based on 
rateable value. The late night levy will not be introduced without the required consultation 
as detailed in the legislation and accompanying guidance.  
At present the Council does not propose to introduce a Late Night Levy 

 
8. EARLY MORNING RESTRICTION ORDER (EMRO)  
 

Following the introduction of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011, if the 
licensing authority considers it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives it 
can make an early morning alcohol restriction order.  
An order would mean that any premises licence, club premises certificate or temporary 
event notice that authorises the sale of alcohol during the period specified in the order 
would not have effect. The period specified must begin no earlier than midnight and end no 
later than 6am. 
At present the Council does not propose to introduce an Early Morning Restriction Order 

  
 
9. DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 
 

As well as applying to the Council in the prescribed manner, copies of each licence 
application must be served on the following authorities by the applicant: 

 
The Licencing Officer 
Bexhill Police Station 
Terminus Road 
Bexhill-on-Sea 
East Sussex 
TN39 3NR  
T 0845 6070 999 

 
The Chief Officer 
East Sussex Fire & Rescue Service 
Fire Safety Department 
Lewes Fire Station 
North Street 
Lewes 
East Sussex 
BN7 2PE 
T 01323 462132/462154 

 

Page 105



 

 16 

Head of Children’s Safeguards and Quality Assurance PO 
Box 5 East Sussex County Council 
County Hall 
Lewes 
East Sussex 
BN7 1SW 
T 01273 481000 

 
Planning Officer 
Lewes District Council 
Southover House 
Southover Road 
Lewes 
East Sussex 
BN7 1AB 
T 01273 471600 

 
Head of Trading Standards 
St Mary’s House 
52 St Leonards Road 
Eastbourne 
East Sussex 
BN21 3UU 
T 01323 418200 

 
The Health & Safety Officer 
Environmental Health 
Southover House 
Southover Road 
Lewes 
East Sussex 
BN7 1AB 
T 01273 471600 

 
Public Health Authority  
Helen Foreman 
Public Health Network and Business Manager 
E1C County Hall 
St Anne’s Crescent  
Lewes 
East Sussex 
BN7 1UE 
T 0345 60 80 190 
 
Alcohol Licensing Team 
Home Office (Immigration) 
Lunar House 
40 Wellesley Road 

Page 106



 

 17 

Croydon 
CR9 2BY 
E Alcohol@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk 

 

Page 107



 

 18 

8 CONTACT DETAILS 
 

Members of the public can obtain advice and help about this policy, the review procedures 
or other matters concerning whether or not activities fall to be licenced by contacting the 
Licencing Officer, Lewes District Council, Southover House, Southover Road, Lewes, East 
Sussex, BN7 1AB 

 
Telephone 01273 471600 
Email licensing@lewes.gov.uk 

 
Further information can also be found on the Council’s website www.lewes.gov.uk 

 
Advice and guidance may also be sought from the Police and Fire and Rescue Service by 
contacting them direct. 

 

Page 108

mailto:licensing@lewes.gov.uk
http://www.lewes.gov.uk/


Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2005 No. 44

LICENCES AND LICENSING

The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005

Made       -      -      -      - 12th January 2005

Laid before Parliament 13th January 2005

Coming into force       -      - 7th February 2005

The Secretary of State, in exercise of the powers conferred upon her by sections 9(2) and 183(1) of
the Licensing Act 2003(1) hereby makes the following Regulations:

Citation and commencement

1. These Regulations may be cited as the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005 and
shall come into force on 7th February 2005.

Interpretation

2.—(1)  In these Regulations—
“the Act” means the Licensing Act 2003;
“authority” means, in relation to a hearing, the relevant licensing authority which has the
duty under the Act to hold the hearing which expression includes the licensing committee or
licensing sub-committee discharging the function of holding the hearing;
“determination” is to be interpreted in accordance with Schedule 4;
“hearing” means the hearing referred to in column 1 of the table in Schedule 1 as the case
may require;
“legible in all material respects” means that the information contained in the notice is available
to the recipient to no lesser extent than it would be if given by means of a document in written
form;
“notice of hearing” means the notice given under regulation 6(1);
“party to the hearing” means a person to whom the notice of hearing is to be given in accordance
with regulation 6(1) and “party” and “parties” shall be construed accordingly.

(1) 2003 c. 17

Page 109

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/2003/17
Nick.Peeters_9
Typewritten Text
Appendix 6



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(2)  In these Regulations, a reference to the application, representations or notice made by a party
means the application, representations or notice referred to in relation to that party in column 2 of
the table in Schedule 2.

(3)  In these Regulations, a reference to a section, or a paragraph of a Schedule is a reference to
the section of, or the paragraph of the Schedule to, the Act.

Scope

3. These Regulations make provision for the procedure to be followed in relation to hearings
held under the Act by an authority.

Period of time within which hearing to be held

4. The authority shall arrange for the date on which and time and place at which a hearing is
to be held in accordance with regulation 5 and shall give a notice of hearing in accordance with
regulations 6 and 7.

5. Hearings to be held under the provisions listed in column 1 of the table in Schedule 1 must
be commenced within the period of time specified in column 2 of the table and in a case where the
hearing is to be held on more than one day, the hearing must be arranged to take place on consecutive
working days.

Notice of hearing

6.—(1)  In the case of hearings under the provisions listed in column 1 of the table in Schedule 2,
the authority shall give to the persons listed in column 2 of the table a notice stating the date on
which and time and place at which the hearing is to be held (the “notice of hearing”) in accordance
with the following provisions of this regulation.

(2)  In the case of a hearing under—
(a) section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim authority notice following police objection), or
(b) section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to temporary event notice),

the authority shall give the notice of hearing no later than two working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

(3)  In the case of a hearing under—
(a) section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure order),
(b) paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion of existing

licence),
(c) paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion of existing

club certificate), or
(d) paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application by holder of justices'

licence for grant of personal licence),
the authority shall give the notice of hearing no later than five working days before the day or the
first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Information to accompany notice of hearing

7.—(1)  The notice of hearing shall be accompanied by information regarding the following—
(a) the rights of a party provided for in regulations 15 and 16;
(b) the consequences if a party does not attend or is not represented at the hearing;

2

Page 110



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(c) the procedure to be followed at the hearing;
(d) any particular points on which the authority considers that it will want clarification at the

hearing from a party.
(2)  In relation to hearings under the provisions listed in column 1 of the table in Schedule 3, the

notice of hearing given to the persons listed in column 2 of the table shall also be accompanied by
the documents listed in column 3 of the table.

Action following receipt of notice of hearing

8.—(1)  A party shall give to the authority within the period of time provided for in the following
provisions of this regulation a notice stating—

(a) whether he intends to attend or be represented at the hearing;
(b) whether he considers a hearing to be unnecessary.

(2)  In a case where a party wishes any other person (other than the person he intends to represent
him at the hearing) to appear at the hearing, the notice referred to in paragraph (1) shall contain a
request for permission for such other person to appear at the hearing accompanied by details of the
name of that person and a brief description of the point or points on which that person may be able
to assist the authority in relation to the application, representations or notice of the party making
the request.

(3)  In the case of a hearing under—
(a) section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of interim authority notice following police objection), or
(b) section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to temporary event notice),

the party shall give the notice no later than one working day before the day or the first day on which
the hearing is to be held.

(4)  In the case of a hearing under—
(a) section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure order),
(b) paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion of existing

licence),
(c) paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion of existing

club certificate), or
(d) paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application by holder of justices'

licence for grant of personal licence),
the party shall give the notice no later than two working days before the day or the first day on which
the hearing is to be held.

(5)  In any other case, the party shall give the notice no later than five working days before the
day or the first day on which the hearing is to be held.

Right to dispense with hearing if all parties agree

9.—(1)  An authority may dispense with holding a hearing if all persons required by the Act to
agree that such a hearing is unnecessary, other than the authority itself, have done so by giving notice
to the authority that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary.

(2)  Where all the persons required by the Act to agree that a hearing is unnecessary have done
so in accordance with paragraph (1), the authority, if it agrees that a hearing is unnecessary, must
forthwith give notice to the parties that the hearing has been dispensed with.

3

Page 111



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Withdrawal of representations

10. A party who wishes to withdraw any representations they have made may do so—
(a) by giving notice to the authority no later than 24 hours before the day or the first day on

which the hearing is to be held; or
(b) orally at the hearing.

Power to extend time etc.

11.—(1)  Subject to regulation 13, an authority may extend a time limit provided for in these
Regulations for a specified period where it considers this to be necessary in the public interest.

(2)  Where the authority has extended a time limit it must forthwith give a notice to the parties
stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it.

12.—(1)  Subject to regulation 13, an authority may—
(a) adjourn a hearing to a specified date, or
(b) arrange for a hearing to be held on specified additional dates,

where it considers this to be necessary for its consideration of any representations or notice made
by a party.

(2)  Where an authority has adjourned a hearing to a specified date it must forthwith notify the
parties of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.

(3)  Where an authority has arranged for a hearing to be held on a specified additional date it
must forthwith notify the parties of the additional date on which and time and place at which the
hearing is to be held.

13. An authority may not exercise its powers under regulations 11 and 12 in such a way that the
effect will be that—

(a) an application will be treated as granted or rejected under paragraph 4(4), 7(3), 16(4),
19(3) or 26(4) of Schedule 8 (transitional provision etc.); or

(b) it would fail to reach a determination on the review under section 167 (review of premises
licence following closure order) within the period specified in subsection (3) of that
section.

Hearing to be public

14.—(1)  Subject to paragraph (2), the hearing shall take place in public.
(2)  The licensing authority may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing where it considers

that the public interest in so doing outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or that part of the
hearing, taking place in public.

(3)  For the purposes of paragraph (2), a party and any person assisting or representing a party
may be treated as a member of the public.

Right of attendance, assistance and representation

15. Subject to regulations 14(2) and 25, a party may attend the hearing and may be assisted or
represented by any person whether or not that person is legally qualified.

Representations and supporting information

16. At the hearing a party shall be entitled to—

4

Page 112



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(a) in response to a point upon which the authority has given notice to a party that it will
want clarification under regulation 7(1)(d), give further information in support of their
application, representations or notice (as applicable),

(b) if given permission by the authority, question any other party; and
(c) address the authority.

17. Members of the authority may ask any question of any party or other person appearing at
the hearing.

18. In considering any representations or notice made by a party the authority may take into
account documentary or other information produced by a party in support of their application,
representations or notice (as applicable) either before the hearing or, with the consent of all the other
parties, at the hearing.

19. The authority shall disregard any information given by a party or any person to whom
permission to appear at the hearing is given by the authority which is not relevant to—

(a) their application, representations or notice (as applicable) or in the case of another person,
the application representations or notice of the party requesting their appearance, and

(b) the promotion of the licensing objectives or, in relation to a hearing to consider a notice
given by a chief officer of police, the crime prevention objective.

Failure of parties to attend the hearing

20.—(1)  If a party has informed the authority that he does not intend to attend or be represented
at a hearing, the hearing may proceed in his absence.

(2)  If a party who has not so indicated fails to attend or be represented at a hearing the authority
may—

(a) where it considers it to be necessary in the public interest, adjourn the hearing to a specified
date, or

(b) hold the hearing in the party’s absence.
(3)  Where the authority holds the hearing in the absence of a party, the authority shall consider

at the hearing the application, representations or notice made by that party.
(4)  Where the authority adjourns the hearing to a specified date it must forthwith notify the parties

of the date, time and place to which the hearing has been adjourned.

Procedure at hearing

21. Subject to the provisions of these Regulations, the authority shall determine the procedure
to be followed at the hearing.

22. At the beginning of the hearing, the authority shall explain to the parties the procedure
which it proposes to follow at the hearing and shall consider any request made by a party under
regulation 8(2) for permission for another person to appear at the hearing, such permission shall not
be unreasonably withheld.

23. A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the authority and cross-examination shall
not be permitted unless the authority considers that cross-examination is required for it to consider
the representations, application or notice as the case may require.

24. The authority must allow the parties an equal maximum period of time in which to exercise
their rights provided for in regulation 16.

25. The authority may require any person attending the hearing who in their opinion is behaving
in a disruptive manner to leave the hearing and may—

5

Page 113



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

(a) refuse to permit that person to return, or
(b) permit him to return only on such conditions as the authority may specify,

but such a person may, before the end of the hearing, submit to the authority in writing any
information which they would have been entitled to give orally had they not been required to
leave.

Determination of applications

26.—(1)  In the case of a hearing under—
(a) section 35 or 39 which is in respect of an application made at the same time as an

application for conversion of an existing licence under paragraph 2 of Schedule 8
(determination of application under section 34 or 37),

(b) section 85 which is in respect of an application made at the same time as an application for
conversion of an existing club certificate under paragraph 14 of Schedule 8 (determination
of application under section 85),

(c) section 105(2)(a) (counter notice following police objection to temporary event notice),
(d) section 167(5)(a) (review of premises licence following closure order),
(e) paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion of existing

licence),
(f) paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application for conversion of existing

club certificate), or
(g) paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8 (determination of application by holder of a justices'

licence for grant of personal licence),
the authority must make its determination at the conclusion of the hearing.

(2)  In any other case the authority must make its determination within the period of five working
days beginning with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held.

27. Where a hearing has been dispensed with in accordance with regulation 9, the authority must
make its determination within the period of ten working days beginning with the day the authority
gives notice to the parties under regulation 9(2).

Notification of determination

28.—(1)  In a case where the Act does not make provision for the period within which the
authority must notify a party of its determination, the authority must do so forthwith on making it
determination.

(2)  In a case where—
(a) the Act provides for a chief officer of police to be notified of the determination of an

authority, and
(b) that chief officer of police has not been a party to the hearing,

the authority shall notify that chief officer of police of its determination, forthwith on making its
determination.

29. Where the authority notifies a party of its determination, the notice given (or, in the case of a
hearing under section 31(3)(a) (determination of application for provisional statement), the statement
issued) to the party must be accompanied by information regarding the right of a party to appeal
against the determination of the authority.

6

Page 114



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Record of proceedings

30. The authority shall provide for a record to be taken of the hearing in a permanent and
intelligible form and kept for six years from the date of the determination or, where an appeal is
brought against the determination of the authority, the disposal of the appeal.

Irregularities

31. Any irregularity resulting from any failure to comply with any provision of these Regulations
before the authority has made a determination shall not of itself render the proceedings void.

32. In any case of such an irregularity, the authority shall, if it considers that any person may have
been prejudiced as a result of the irregularity, take such steps as it thinks fit to cure the irregularity
before reaching its determination.

33. Clerical mistakes in any document recording a determination of the authority or errors arising
in such document from an accidental slip or omission may be corrected by the authority.

Notices

34.—(1)  Any notices required to be given by these Regulations must be given in writing.
(2)  Notwithstanding the requirement in paragraph (1) and subject to paragraph (3), that

requirement shall be satisfied in a case where –
(a) the text of the notice—

(i) is transmitted by electronic means;
(ii) is capable of being accessed by the recipient;

(iii) is legible in all material respects; and
(iv) is capable of being reproduced in written form and used for subsequent reference;

(b) the person to whom the notice is to be given has agreed in advance that such a notice may
be given to them by electronic means; and

(c) forthwith on sending the text of the notice by electronic means, the notice is given to the
recipient in writing.

(3)  Where the text of the notice is transmitted by electronic means, the giving of the notice shall
be effected at the time the requirements of paragraph (2)(a) are satisfied.

Date 12th January 2005

Richard Caborn
Minister of State

Department for Culture, Media and Sport

7

Page 115



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

SCHEDULE 1 regulation 5

Column 1 Column 2
 Provision under which

hearing is held.
Period of time within which
hearing must be commenced.

1. Section 18(3)(a)
(determination of application
for premises licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 17(5)(c).

2. Section 31(3)(a)
(determination of application
for a provisional statement).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 17(5)(c) by virtue of
section 30.

3. Section 35(3)(a)
(determination of application
to vary premises licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 17(5)(c) by virtue of
section 34(5).

4. Section 39(3)(a)
(determination of application
to vary premises licence to
specify individual as premises
supervisor).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which a chief
officer of police may give
notice under section 37(5).

5. Section 44(5)(a)
(determination of application
for transfer of premises
licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which a chief
officer of police may give
notice under section 42(6).

6. Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation
of interim authority notice
following police objection).

5 working days beginning with
the day after the end of the
period within which a chief
officer of police may give
notice under section 48(2).

7. Section 52(2) (determination
of application for review of
premises licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 51(3)(c).

8

Page 116



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2
8. Section 72(3)(a)

(determination of application
for club premises certificate).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 71(6)(c).

9. Section 85(3) (determination
of application to vary club
premises certificate).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 71(6)(c) by virtue of
section 84(4).

10. Section 88(2) (determination
of application for review of
club premises certificate).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end
of the period during which
representations may be
made as prescribed under
section 87(3)(c).

11. Section 105(2)(a) (counter
notice following police
objection to temporary event
notice).

7 working days beginning with
the day after the end of the
period within which a chief
officer of police may give a
notice under section 104(2).

12. Section 120(7)(a)
(determination of application
for grant of personal licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which the
chief officer of police may give
a notice under section 120(5).

13. Section 121(6)(a)
(determination of application
for the renewal of personal
licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which the
chief officer of police may give
a notice under section 121(3).

14. Section 124(4)(a) (convictions
coming to light after grant or
renewal of personal licence).

20 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which the
chief officer of police may give
a notice under section 124(3).

15. Section 167(5)(a) (review of
premises licence following
closure order).

10 working days beginning
with the day after the day the
relevant licensing authority
receives the notice given under
section 165(4).

16. Paragraph 4(3)(a) of
Schedule 8 (determination of

10 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which a chief

9

Page 117



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2
application for conversion of
existing licence).

officer of police may give a
notice under paragraph 3(2) or
(3) of Schedule 8.

17. Paragraph 16(3)(a) of
Schedule 8 (determination of
application for conversion of
existing club certificate).

10 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which a chief
officer of police may give a
notice under paragraph 15(2)
or (3) of Schedule 8.

18. Paragraph 26(3)(a) of
Schedule 8 (determination
of application by holder of a
justices' licence for grant of
personal licence).

10 working days beginning
with the day after the end of
the period within which the
chief officer of police may give
a notice under paragraph 25(2)
of Schedule 8.

SCHEDULE 2 regulation 6

Column 1 Column 2
 Provision under which

hearing is held.
Persons to whom notice of
hearing is to be given.

1. Section 18(3)(a)
(determination of application
for premises licence).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
section 17(1);

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 18(6).

2. Section 31(3)(a)
(determination of application
for provisional statement).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
section 29(2);

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 31(5).

3. Section 35(3)(a)
(determination of application
to vary premises licence).

(1)  The holder of the
premises licence who has
made the application under
section 34(1);

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 35(5).

4. Section 39(3)(a)
(determination of application
to vary premises licence to
specify individual as premises
supervisor).

(1)  The holder of the
premises licence who has
made the application under
section 37(1);

10

Page 118



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2
(2)  each chief officer of

police who has given notice
under section 37(5);

(3)  the proposed individual
as referred to in section 37(1).

5. Section 44(5)(a)
(determination of application
for transfer of premises
licence).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
section 42(1);

(2)  each chief officer of
police who has given notice
under section 42(6);

(3)  the holder of the
premises licence in respect of
which the application has been
made or, if the application is
one to which section 43(1)
applies, the holder of that
licence immediately before the
application was made.

6. Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation
of interim authority notice
following police objection).

(1)  The person who
has given notice under
section 47(2);

(2)  each chief officer of
police who has given notice
under section 48(2).

7. Section 52(2) (determination
of application for review of
premises licence).

(1)  The holder of the
premises licence in respect of
which the application has been
made;

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 52(7);

(3)  the person who has
made the application under
section 51(1).

8. Section 72(3)(a)
(determination of application
for club premises certificate).

(1)  The club which has
made the application under
section 71(1);

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 72(7).

9. Section 85(3)(a)
(determination of application
to vary club premises
certificate).

(1)  The club which has
made the application under
section 84(1);

11

Page 119



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2
(2)  persons who have

made relevant representations
as defined in section 85(5).

10. Section 88(2) (determination
of application for review of
club premises certificate).

(1)  The club which holds
the club premises certificate in
respect of which the application
has been made;

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 88(7);

(3)  the person who has
made the application under
section 87(1).

11. Section 105(2)(a) (counter
notice following police
objection to temporary event
notice).

(1)  The premises user;
(2)  each chief officer of

police who has given notice
under section 104(2).

12. Section 120(7)(a)
(determination of application
for grant of personal licence).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
section 117(1);

(2)  the chief officer of police
who has given notice under
section 120(5).

13. Section 121(6)(a)
(determination of application
for renewal of personal
licence).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
section 117(1);

(2)  the chief officer of police
who has given notice under
section 121(3).

14. Section 124(4)(a) (convictions
coming to light after grant or
renewal of personal licence).

(1)  The holder of the licence
in respect of which the notice
has been given;

(2)  the chief officer of police
who has given notice under
section 124(3).

15. Section 167(5)(a) (review of
premises licence following
closure order).

(1)  The holder of the
premises licence in respect of
which the review has been
made;

(2)  persons who have
made relevant representations
as defined in section 167(9).

16. Paragraph 4(3)(a) of
Schedule 8 (determination of
application for conversion of
existing licence).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 8;

12

Page 120



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2
(2)  each chief officer of

police who has given notice
under paragraph 3(2) or (3) of
Schedule 8.

17. Paragraph 16(3)(a) of
Schedule 8 (determination of
application for conversion of
existing club certificate).

(1)  The club which has made
the application under paragraph
14(2) of Schedule 8;

(2)  each chief officer of
police who has given notice
under paragraph 15(2) or (3) of
Schedule 8.

18. Paragraph 26(3)(a) of
Schedule 8 (determination
of application by holder of a
justices' licence for grant of
personal licence).

(1)  The person who has
made the application under
section 117 to which paragraph
23(1) of Schedule 8 applies;

(2)  the chief officer of police
who has given notice under
paragraph 25(2) of Schedule 8.

SCHEDULE 3 regulation 7

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
 Provision under

which hearing is held
Person to whom
notice of hearing is
given

Documents to
accompany notice of
hearing

1. Section 18(3)(a)
(determination
of application for
premises licence).

The person who has
made the application
under section 17(1).

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 18(6) which
have been made.

2. Section 31(3)(a)
(determination
of application for
provisional statement).

The person who has
made the application
under section 29(2).

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 31(5) which
have been made.

3. Section 35(3)(a)
(determination of
application to vary
premises licence).

The holder of the
premises licence
who has made the
application under
section 34(1).

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 35(5) which
have been made.

4. Section 39(3)(a)
(determination of
application to vary
premises licence to

(1)  The holder
of the premises
licence who has made
the application under
section 37(1);

The notices which
have been given under
section 37(6).

13

Page 121



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
specify individual as
premises supervisor).

(2)  the proposed
individual as referred
to in section 37(1).

5. Section 44(5)(a)
(determination of
application for transfer
of premises licence).

(1)  The person
who has made
the application under
section 42(1);

(2)  the holder
of the premises
licence in respect of
which the application
has been made or,
if the application
is one to which
section 43(1) applies,
the holder of that
licence immediately
before the application
was made.

The notices which
have been given under
section 42(6).

6. Section 48(3)(a)
(cancellation of
interim authority
notice following police
objection).

The person who has
given notice under
section 47(2).

The notices which
have been given under
section 48(2).

7. Section 52(2)
(determination of
application for review
of premises licence).

The holder of the
premises licence in
respect of which the
application has been
made.

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 52(7) which
have been made.

8. Section 72(3)(a)
(determination of
application for club
premises certificate).

The club which has
made the application
under section 71(1).

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 72(7) which
have been made.

9. Section 85(3)(a)
(determination
of application to
vary club premises
certificate).

The club which has
made the application
under section 84(1).

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 85(5) which
have been made.

10. Section 88(2)
(determination of
application for review
of club premises
certificate).

The club which holds
the club premises
certificate in respect of
which the application
has been made.

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 88(7) which
have been made.

11. Section 120(7)(a)
(determination of
application for grant of
personal licence).

The person who has
made the application
under section 117(1).

The notice which
has been given under
section 120(5)

14

Page 122



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3
12. Section 121(6)(a)

(determination of
application for renewal
of personal licence).

The person who has
made the application
under section 117(1).

The notice which
has been given under
section 121(3).

13. Section 124(4)(a)
(convictions coming
to light after grant or
renewal of personal
licence).

The holder of the
licence in respect of
which the notice has
been given.

The notice which
has been given under
section 124(3).

14. Section 167(5)(a)
(review of premises
licence following
closure order).

The holder of the
premises licence in
respect of which the
review has been made.

The relevant
representations
as defined in
section 167(9) which
have been made.

SCHEDULE 4 regulation 2

Meaning of “determination”
The determination of the authority is the outcome of its consideration, as applicable, of—

1. the relevant representations as defined in section 18(6), in accordance with section 18,

2. the relevant representations as defined in section 31(5), in accordance with section 31,

3. the relevant representations as defined in section 35(5), in accordance with section 35,

4. a notice given under section 37(5), in accordance with section 39,

5. a notice given under section 42(6), in accordance with section 44,

6. a notice given under section 48(2), in accordance with section 48,

7. an application made in accordance with section 51 and any relevant representations as defined
in section 52(7), in accordance with section 52,

8. the relevant representations as defined in section 72(7), in accordance with section 72,

9. the relevant representations as defined in section 85(5), in accordance with section 85,

10. an application made in accordance with section 87 and any relevant representations as defined
in section 88(7), in accordance with section 88,

11. a notice given under section 104(2), in accordance with section 105,

12. a notice given under section 120(5), in accordance with section 120,

13. a notice given under section 121(3), in accordance with section 121,

14. a notice given under section 124(3), in accordance with section 124,

15. the matters referred to in section 167(5)(a), in accordance with section 167,

16. the notice given under paragraph 3(2) or (3) of Schedule 8, in accordance with its paragraph 4,

17. the notice given under paragraph 15(2) or (3) of Schedule 8, in accordance with its paragraph
16, or

15

Page 123



Document Generated: 2017-07-25
Status: This is the original version (as it was originally made). This
item of legislation is currently only available in its original format.

18. the notice given under paragraph 25(2) of Schedule 8, in accordance with its paragraph 26.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note is not part of the Regulations)

These Regulations make provision for the holding of hearings required to be held by licensing
authorities under the Licensing Act 2003(c. 17) (“the Act”).
In particular, the Regulations provide for the timing of hearings and the notification requirements
to parties to a hearing of the date, time and place of a hearing and information to accompany that
notification (regulations 4, to 7 and Schedules 1, 2 and 3). In addition, provision is made for a
party to a hearing to provide information to the licensing authority about attendance at a hearing,
representations, the seeking of permission for another person to attend to assist the authority and
whether the party believes a hearing to be necessary (regulation 8).
The Regulations provide for a range of procedural issues to govern the way in which preparations are
made for a hearing, for the procedures to be followed, the rights of parties at a hearing, and various
administrative matters, for example, the keeping of a record of the hearing and the manner of giving
notices (regulations 9 to 33). The Regulations also make provision for the timing of the licensing
authority’s determination following a hearing (Schedule 4).
Insofar as these Regulations do not make provision for procedures for and at hearings, section 9 of
the Act provides that the authority can determine its own procedure.
A Regulatory Impact Assessment in relation to these Regulations has been placed in the libraries
of both Houses of Parliament and copies may be obtained from the Alcohol and Entertainment
Licensing Branch of the Department for Culture, Media and Sport, 3rd Floor, 2-4 Cockspur Street,
London SW1Y 5DH or viewed on the Department’s website, www.culture.gov.uk.

16

Page 124

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/ukpga/2003/17
http://www.culture.gov.uk


Page 125

Nick.Peeters_10
Typewritten Text
Appendix 7



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133

Nick.Peeters_11
Typewritten Text
Appendix 8



Page 134



Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 137



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Premises Licence hearing - Lewes Golf Club
	Appendix 1 (1) plans
	Appendix 1 (2)
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4 - Barbara Shepherd
	Appendix 4 - Christopher Dorling
	Appendix 4 - David & Ann Bradford
	Appendix 4 - Geoffrey Bush
	Appendix 4 - Graham Funnell
	Appendix 4 - Jonathan Barrett image 1
	Appendix 4 - Jonathan Barrett image 2
	Appendix 4 - Jonathan Barrett
	Appendix 4 - Ken Sutton
	Appendix 4 - Martha Bush
	Appendix 4 - Mathias & Prince
	Appendix 4 - Peter Weston
	Appendix 4 - Richard Tribe
	Appendix 4 - Ruth Rach (additional objection)
	Appendix 4 - Ruth Rach (email attaching image)
	Appendix 4 - Ruth Rach (image)
	Appendix 4 - Ruth Rach
	Appendix 4 - Susan Hammond
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7
	Appendix 8
	Appendix 9 (1)
	Appendix 9 (2)




